
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – DECEMBER 3, 2007 

VAUGHAN MILLS ROAD 
OPERATIONAL SAFETY ADDITIONAL REVIEW 

Recommendation 

The Commissioner of Engineering and Public Works recommends: 
 
1. That this report be received for information; 
 
2. That the draft report entitled “Vaughan Mills Road – Operational Safety Review” by SRM 

Associates Ltd. dated November 20, 2007, be received; 
 
3. That a community meeting be held at which the consultant’s report would be presented 

and a consensus reached with area residents on measures to be implemented to address 
the traffic operational issues in the subject section of Vaughan Mills Road at Humberview 
Drive; and, 

 
4. That York Regional Police be contacted to provide frequent enforcement of the existing 40 

km/h speed limit, specifically in the area north of the Humber River Bridge. 
 

Economic Impact 
 
There will be a cost to be absorbed in the Traffic Calming Capital Budget Account Budget for the 
traffic calming measure installation.  The cost to maintain the traffic calming measures, signs and 
markings would have an impact to be absorbed in future Operating Budgets. 
 
Communication Plan 
 
A community meeting will be scheduled and invitations sent to the affected residents in the 
vicinity of Vaughan Mills Road and Humberview Drive. 

Purpose 

To report on the operational safety review for Vaughan Mills Road between Roselawn Drive and 
the Humber River Bridge, as provided by a transportation consultant.  The consultant was 
retained to review the traffic operations with specific emphasis on the area near Humberview 
Drive. 
 
Background - Analysis and Options 
 
The Vaughan Mills Road bridge was opened in December 2002, making Vaughan Mills Road 
continuous between Rutherford Road and Langstaff Road.  Vaughan Mills Road is designed as a 
feeder roadway with a 23.0 metre right-of-way and a 11.5 metre travel width (one lane per 
direction).  The existing posted speed limit is 40 km/h. 
 
There is an existing raised roadway median from approximately 30 metres north of Humberview 
Drive to approximately 80 metres north of the Humber River Bridge.  
 
The review is summarized in the report “Vaughan Mills Road – Operational Safety Review” dated 
November 20, 2007.  In the report, the consultant noted: 
 

• that there is a 85% decrease in the number of reported vehicle collisions from 2003 to 
June 2006; 

• that there is a 9% decrease in the traffic volume between 2003 and 2007; 



• that the southbound vehicle speed has increased by 5 km/h at the bottom of the hill near 
the bridge; 

• that the northbound vehicle speed has decreased by 3 km/h at the bottom of the hill near 
the bridge; 

• that the installation of an all-way stop control at the intersection of Vaughan Mills Road 
and Humberview Drive does not meet the Provincial All-way Stop Warrant and is not 
recommended. 

 
In their review, the consultant indentified the following alternative countermeasures that may be 
considered along Vaughan Mills Road: 
 
1. Upgraded police enforcement. 
2. Close the Humber River Bridge, reduce its width or restrict travel direction. 
3. Restrict turns at Rutherford Road. 
4. Extend existing median, dividing the road. 
5. Speed humps. 
6. Traffic circle at Humberview Drive. 
7. Curb bump-outs to restrict driving lane widths. 
8. Crosswalk at Humberview Drive. 
9. Roadway centerline and/or edgeline markings in conjunction with pavement reflectors. 
10. Grooved edgelines and/or grooves on both sides of the medians to alert motorists. 
11. Raised intersection at Humberview Drive. 
12. Increased sidewalk setbacks. 
13. Improved guidance to motorists such as signing the steep grade for southbound drivers. 
 
It should be recognized that in some cases enforcement is the only effective deterrent to reckless 
operation of a motor vehicle.  In such cases, no amount of engineering can offset a total lack of 
motorist vigilance.  Some of the alternatives can be implemented at a minimal cost such as 
pavement markings and pavement reflectors.  Other major type works such as the construction of 
a raised intersection, extension of the centre median or a traffic circle are cost restrictive. 
 
Vehicle Speeds: 

 
Traffic Volumes 

 
All-way Stop 
 
Staff conducted a turning movement count on Wednesday, September 19, 2007, at the 
intersection of Vaughan Mills Road and Humberview Drive during the morning and afternoon 
peak time periods of 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m., and 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.  On the day of the traffic 

 Average Speed 85th percentile Speed 
 Northbound Southbound Northbound Southbound 

Vaughan Mills 
Road South of 

Roselawn Drive 
48 Km/h 49 Km/h 56 Km/h 56 Km/h 

Vaughan Mills 
Road North of 
Humber Bridge 

53 km/h 56 Km/h 62 Km/h 64 Km/h 

 Northbound Southbound 
Vaughan Mills Road South of Roselawn 
Drive 1740 1885 

Vaughan Mills Road North of Humber 
Bridge 1685 1835 



study the weather was clear.  The data collected was compared to the Provincial Warrant for All-
Way Stop Control with the following results: 
 
• Warrant 1 – Minimum Vehicular Volumes Warranted 30% 
• Warrant 2 – Accident Hazard   Warranted   0% 
• Warrant 3 – Sight Restriction   Warranted    0% 
 
All-way stop controls are recommended when one of the above warrants are satisfied to 100% or 
more.  There have been no reported collisions from June 2005 through to June 2006, the last 
year for which collision data is available.  There are no sight restrictions at this intersection.  
According to the results above, this intersection does not meet the minimum requirements of the 
warrant.   

 
Collision History 
 
From 2003 to June 2006, there have been two collisions reported to York Regional Police on this 
section of Vaughan Mills Road.  Residents have reported a number of collisions where the driver 
left the scene and there was no police report of the incident.  In early November, 2007, a 
northbound vehicle travelling at high speed went out of control and hit a light pole.  Through 
complaints from area residents, it appears that this section of roadway is prone to irresponsible 
drivers travelling at high speed and endangering other motorists, pedestrians and residents. 
 
The Consultant has recommended the following for Vaughan Mills Road: 
 
* A combination of driver guidance related treatments such as signage and pavement 

marking in combination with physical traffic calming measures are proposed to achieve 
reduced traffic speeds. 

 
* Narrow the lanes from the existing median south to the south end of the Humber River 

Bridge by placing pavement markings in conjunction with pavement reflectors either 
offset from the edge of pavement or as a median.  Alternately, a mountable centre 
median could be constructed. 

 
* Improve guidance to motorists through upgraded signage by adding a ‘steep grade’ sign 

just south of Roselawn Drive. 
 
* Construct a traffic circle at Humberview Drive. 
 
Engineering Services staff in general concur with the recommendations stated in the Consultant’s 
report and recommend exploring the installation of a raised pedestrian crossing at Humberview 
Drive in place of a traffic circle. 
 
An all-way stop control at Humberview Drive is not recommended.  It is unwarranted and its 
installation may introduce other safety related concerns. 
 
Further to the recommendation of the Consultant’s report, Engineering Services staff 
recommends that ‘Pedestrian’ warning signs be implemented with flashing beacons in both 
directions.  The recommended “steep grade” warning signs could also be fitted with flashing 
beacons.  Funding for the warning signs and flashing beacons can be drawn from the Traffic 
Calming Capital Budget Account EN-1607-07. 
 
Relationship to Vaughan Vision 2007 
 
This traffic study is consistent with Vaughan Vision 2007 as to ensure that the enhancement of 
safety standards are adhered to (1.1.2) and that effective traffic calming measures meet the City’s 
Neighbourhood Policy and Procedures and warrants for traffic calming (3.3.1). 



This report is consistent with the priorities previously set by Council. 
 
Regional Implications 
 
Not Applicable. 

Conclusion 

It is recommended that this report be received for information, and that the draft report entitled 
“Vaughan Mills Road – Operational Safety Review” by SRM Associates Ltd. dated November 20, 
2007, be received. 
 
It is also recommended that a meeting be held with residents of Humberview Drive and the area 
of Vaughan Mills Road between Roselawn and the bridge to review the findings and alternatives.  
The intention would be to obtain a consensus from residents on measures to be implemented to 
address the problem. 

Attachments 

1. Location Map 
2. Draft Report, “Vaughan Mills Road – Operational Safety Review” (Mayor and Members of 

Council only) 

Report prepared by 

Leslie Winfrow – Senior Traffic Technologist, ext. 3131 
Mike Dokman – Supervisor, Traffic Engineering, ext. 3118 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Bill Robinson, P. Eng.       
Commissioner of Engineering and Public Works    
 



 













 







 


